
 
AGENDA 
 
 
DOWNTOWN 
DEVELOPMENT  
AUTHORITY 
 
Board Members: 
 
Luis Avila • Mayor Rosalynn Bliss •  Kayem Dunn • Jermale Eddie • Greg McNeilly • Jen Schottke • Diana Sieger • Jim Talen  
Rick Winn 

 
   
   

 
 
Wednesday, December 11, 2020 
8:00 a.m. Meeting 
29 Pearl Street, NW Suite #1

 
 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. New Board Member Introduction 
 

3. Approve Meeting Minutes from December 31, 2019 (8:01)   Motion  Winn 
(enclosure) 

 
4. Accept December 31, 2019 Financial Statements (8:05)   Motion   Wallace 

(enclosure) 
 

5. Presentation of the FY2019 Audit (8:10)     Motion  Wallace 
(enclosures) 
 

6. 2020 Meeting Schedule Update (8:20)     Motion   Kelly  
 

7. 2020 Vice Chair Election (8:25)      Motion  Board 
 

8. Disability Advocate / Common Notice Update (8:30)   Info Item Miller 
 

9. President and CEO Report (8:50)     Info Item Kelly 
 

10. Public Comment (9:00) 
 

11. Board Member Discussion (9:10) 
 

12. Adjournment (9:15)   



           UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

 
 

MEETING OF THE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
 

December 11, 2019  
 

 
1. Call to Order – The meeting was called to order at 8:04 a.m. by Chair Brian Harris 
 
2. Attendance            
 

Present: Jim Talen, Rick Winn, Brian Harris, Diana Sieger, Mayor Rosalynn Bliss, Luis Avila, Jen 
Schottke, Kayem Dunn, Jermale Eddie 

 
Others Present: Tim Kelly (DDA Executive Director), Amanda Sloan, (acting DDA Recording 
Secretary) Jana Wallace (DDA Treasurer), Dick Wendt (Legal Counsel), Jessica Wood (Legal 
Counsel), Andy Guy, Megan Catcho, Kimberly Van Driel, Melvin Eledge, Marion Bonneaux, Kiley 
Tippman, Kyama Kitavi (DGRI Staff), David Davis, Josh Naramore, Gilma DeLaCruz, Nulkia 
Marquez, Christa Ferguson, Jerry Powell, Shatawn and Nadia Brigham, Jennifer Kasper, Alan Richard, 
Alex and Kayla Benda, and others.  

 
3.  Approve Meeting Minutes from November 13, 2019 

Motion: Diana Sieger, supported by Rick Winn, moved approval of the minutes from the November 13, 
2019 meeting as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

4. Accept November 30, 2019 Financial Statements  
Jana Wallace introduced the financial statements for the first five months of the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2020.  She stated FY19 audits have been received and will be included in the agenda packet 
for review in January. Ms. Dunn, referring to statement C, asked if we spent overbudget on project 
expenditures, had unanticipated costs or had a lag in budgeted expenditures.  Mr. Kelly stated the 
Downtown Speaker Series and the Weston Street Development projects did lag.   
 
Motion. Ms. Dunn, supported by Mr. Talen, moved to accept November 30, 2019 Financial Statements 
as recommended. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

5. 2020 Meeting Schedule 
 Mr. Kelly presented the Downtown Development Authority 2020 Meeting Schedule.  Monthly 

meetings will continue to be held the second Wednesday of every month from 8 am – 10 am.  
Please note, November’s meeting will be held on the first Wednesday (November 4th) due to the 
holiday.   



Downtown Development Authority  
December 11, 2019 
Meeting Minutes 
 

Page | 2 
 

Motion: Ms. Sieger, supported by Mr. Winn, moved to approve the 2020 Meeting Schedule. Motion 
carried unanimously.  

  
6. Ottawa Avenue Extension Land Conveyance 
 Mr. Kelly stated a section of Ottawa Avenue, currently owned by the DDA, was constructed by the 

developers of Studio Park to be utilized as a right of way.  To officially dedicate this section of the 
road, which extends Ottawa Avenue from Cherry to Oakes, the DDA is being asked to convey several 
slivers of property to the City via Quit Claim Deed at $48.22 per square foot.  Mr. Harris asked how 
the $48.22 was established.  Mr. Kelly stated an appraisal was completed and noted the sale proceeds 
will be received over 3 years in equal installments totaling $539,744.68.  Mr. Avila curiously asked what 
happens if we do not approve this transaction. Mr. Went explained it was already approved by this 
board as part of the development agreement, though it was unknown exactly where the street would 
be constructed.  Mr. Harris thanked Mr. Avila for asking the question.   

 
 Motion: Mr. Winn, supported by Ms. Sieger, moved to adopt the resolution approving the sale of property 

to the City of Grand Rapids related to the Ottawa Avenue extension for $539,774.68.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
7. Business Innovation Grant Requests 
 Mr. Kitavi stated we have three proposals that Goal 4 is recommending the DDA support this 

morning. He briefly reminded the board that this grant program was created, as called for in GR 
Forward, to attract retail tenants that provide goods or services currently not available or underserved 
in the Downtown area, with focused support for the growth of small businesses owned by females, 
people of color, and other disadvantaged populations.  In doing so, this not only provides unique 
opportunities but increases the diversity of residents downtown and the general population of Grand 
Rapids.  Since the publication of our RFP in June 2018, the DDA has approved support for Tamales 
Mary, Ambiance GR, Mosby’s Popcorn, and Mel Styles.  Mr. Kitavi stated, today, we are asking the 
DDA to review 3 more business options that are following this tradition of bringing a unique business 
downtown, further increasing diversity, and activating downtown spaces that may otherwise have 
remained vacant.   

  
 GRNoir Wine and Jazz is a husband and wife team that seeks to leverage 2 communal activities (wine 

and jazz) in a city already rich with beer and distillery options.  Mr. and Mrs. Brigham have 40 years of 
collective experience with different projects including equity inclusion and leadership development.  
They have participated in Start Garden Top 100 competition, winning $20,000 as a Top 10 finisher.  
Ms. Brigham stated they are excited to activate a vacant space at 35 S. Division and introduce this 
unique cultural experience to the neighborhood.  Mr. Kitavi stated The Brighams will invest $75,000 of 
personal funds and are requesting $21,164.97 to underwrite a portion of the lease.  Goal 4 is 
recommending the support of this proposal as it offers diversity to Downtown retail offerings, supports 
entrepreneurship and small business growth, and activates a vacant space by entertaining and 
engaging the community.  Ms. Dunn asked about the grand opening.  Mr. Brigham stated likely the 
opening will be in the spring, depending on funding and construction work.  Mr. Talen stated can attest 
to The Brighams’ dedication to positively impact in the community.  Mr. Avila added this is a great 
location for this business and is proud to support this project. Mr. Harris asked if GRNoir will be 
featuring wines from black owned vineyards. Ms. Brigham stated not exclusively, as only 2% of all 
vineyards are black owned, but the intent is to highlight and feature those options available.  

 



Downtown Development Authority  
December 11, 2019 
Meeting Minutes 
 

Page | 3 
 

Motion: Ms. Sieger, supported by Mr. Talen, enthusiastically moved to adopt the resolution authorizing 
the DDA Executive Director to prepare a written contract with the applicants granting an amount not to 
exceed $21,164.97 for a period of time not to exceed 18 months.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 Mr. Kitavi introduced Gilma DeLaCruz of Art Caribbean Fusion and Cuisine stating this business 

seeks to introduce Caribbean food to downtown.  Both Gilma and Edward DeLaCruz have worked 
with close relatives on other successful restaurant projects. Ms. DeLaCruz graduated from Secchia 
Institute and the pair launched the El Caribbean Food Truck in 2018 to test the market in and around 
downtown, growing the demand for a permanent location.  They have continued to deepen their 
business experience by participating in Start Garden’s 100 Ideas and seeking support from mentors 
and other support organizations to develop this plan.  The location of 50 Monroe currently houses 
Grand Central Deli which is scaling back to just a grocery where Mr. and Ms. DeLaCruz will launch 
from an already built-out space in an active corridor.  The request today is for $36,000 to underwrite a 
portion of this 5-year lease (with option to renew). Mr. Kitavi stated this proposal advances numerous 
downtown goals including diversifying the mix of retail offerings, supporting entrepreneurship and 
activating a recently vacated space. Mr. Harris asked for clarification on the formula used to calculate 
these funding requests.  Mr. Kitavi stated we are limiting the grant per business to 50% of the lease 
payment for up to 18 months.  Mr. Eddie questioned the process for receiving these funds once 
approved, to confirm that it doesn’t hinder the business owner in any way. Mr. Kitavi stated it 
sometimes depends on lease negotiations but once the agreements are executed, and the proper steps 
have been taken on the back end, it takes about 30 days to receive the check.  We are frontloading 
information for these businesses to facilitate the necessary prep work to make this as easy as possible. 
Mr. Harris asked Ms. DeLaCruz what her goal is and what is driving her to take this risk.  Ms. 
DeLaCruz stated she is pleased to be making a difference with the community, finding acceptance, 
and sharing a unique experience as she continues to grow her business within the City. 

 
Motion: Mr. Talen, supported by Mayor Rosalynn Bliss, moved to adopt the resolution authorizing the 
DDA Executive Director to prepare a written contract with the applicants granting an amount not to 
exceed $36,000 for a period of time not to exceed 18 months.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 Oh, Hello Co. is another husband and wife team, Kayla and Alex Benda, that in 2014 started as a 

greeting card company but very quickly expanded, becoming a top 5% shop on Etsy. Both Mr. and 
Ms. Benda are entrepreneurial and community driven persons.  They have chosen to open a storefront 
on Monroe Center to further grow their previously exclusive online business.  Oh, Hello Co. will host 
tutorials, workshops, and other experiences to support entrepreneurs and artists in GR and feature 
local Grand Rapids brands in its shop.  Mr. Kitavi stated this highly recognizable and engaging brand 
will be a major boost for this business corridor.  The Benders are investing $45,000 of business and 
personal savings to build out the space and cover initial inventory and marketing.  The request today is 
for just over $20,000 to assist in the underwriting of their lease.  Mr. Harris is delighted to have these 3 
businesses clustered in this area.  He stated we’ve had several businesses find that a gift shop is 
challenging but this focus on GR local and the offering of community experiences will be great.  He 
asked if they plan to continue with their online business. Mr. Benda stated, yes, and invited everyone to 
come visit and see all the shop has to offer. 

 
Motion: Ms. Dunn, supported by Mr. Winn, moved to adopt the resolution authorizing the DDA 
Executive Director to prepare a written contract with the applicants granting an amount not to exceed 
$20,312.76 for a period of time not to exceed 18 months.  Motion carried unanimously. 



Downtown Development Authority  
December 11, 2019 
Meeting Minutes 
 

Page | 4 
 

 
Mr. Harris stated this is will make the 7th business the DDA has supported this year; we need to get to a 
point where we can define what the actual success is, but this is a sign that we are building momentum.  
He encouraged DGRI to share these (grand opening) events with the community so they know we are 
making progress.   

 
8.  Economics of Place Assessment 
 Mr. Kelly requested to approve a contract with Chris Leinberger (and team) to conduct an Economics 

of Place Assessment, not to exceed $225,000.  He stated we had GR Forward conversations with Mr. 
Leinberger previously (on high level macro forces of influence on downtown urban environments) and 
more recently met with him to receive an update on some of his research.  Mr. Leinberger is a leader in 
the field for urban form, Chair at the Center for Real Estate and Urban Analysis at George 
Washington University School of Business, and published author on walkable urban places.  His 
research shows a great demand for walkable urban areas: high density with multiple residential options, 
transit rich, and highly walkable space. Between 2010 and 2018, increased demand for walkable urban 
real estate has been seen in market premiums, a shift in the market not seen since the 1980s. Data 
metrics (for WalkUPs) highlight trends with higher educational attainment, social equity measures 
(connection to amenities and community services) and economic performance.  Metros dedicating 
land use between 3-5% of the city for walkable space perform much better than others; this is true, not 
just in coastal cities, but statewide and specifically Grand Rapids. Mr. Kelly remarked Downtown and 
WestSide neighborhoods are the most established though we are still lagging some of the Walkable 
Metro leaders by a cycle or two. Data analysis in a 2015 study concludes trends in rent premiums and 
suggests the need for public assistance to overcome market barriers in becoming more established.  
Mr. Kelly stated the suggested scope of work for this assessment would include an update to that 2015 
study and data more specific to GR.  Mr. Leinberger would be asked to build upon previous work to 
prepare a fiscal analysis allowing us to quantify the value of downtown.  As we better understand the 
trends at play, we learn how to calibrate our goals appropriately.  Most importantly, we need to 
understand the economic impacts of our land use decisions and policies (incentives, zoning, 
infrastructure improvements) and how they impact a fiscal analysis.  Ms. Bliss stated she met Mr. 
Leinberger and believes he adds value to city planning; having this data and scope of work available to 
us will be incredibly helpful as we move forward with our work.  Mr. Winn agreed.  Mr. Harris inquired 
as to the length of this project.  Mr. Kelly stated the timeline is 3-4 months which should help inform 
budget conversations for FY21.  Mr. Kelly added Mr. Leinberger will also be invited to develop an 
implementation plan to share with the community.  Mr. Eddie asked if this work will be done just for 
downtown. Mr. Kelly stated it will include the entire city which will give us a full picture. Ms. Bliss stated 
her hope is that this work will show the synergy and how intertwined the neighborhoods and business 
districts are throughout the city.  We want both to be vibrant and strong and unique in their own way 
and not competing with each other.  Mr. Harris stated once we realize their codependency we can start 
to create some cohesiveness. Mr. Kelly added, oftentimes the perception is that “downtown gets the 
better things” and once we can unpack that data, we are able to determine if some of those 
investments impact the greater community.   

  
Motion: Mr. Winn, supported by Mayor Bliss, moved to authorize the DDA Executive Director to finalize 
the scope of work and execute an agreement not to exceed $225,000 with Chris Leinberger to complete 
an Economics of Place Assessment for Grand Rapids. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 



Downtown Development Authority  
December 11, 2019 
Meeting Minutes 
 

Page | 5 
 

9. World of Winter Report 
 Ms. Catcho introduced herself as the Project Coordinator at DGRI. She stated her work is to activate 

public spaces downtown through events and would like to share the programming she is currently 
working on.  World of Winter is our annual winter ice festival that will take place from January 17th to 
February 17th.  She presented photos of Prismatica, the interactive art installation from CREOS being 
hosted at 555 Monroe Avenue NW during these four weeks.  25 spinnable light up prisms will be 
placed throughout the Monroe North Lot (MNL) inviting the public to watch, touch, and listen.  To 
kick off World of Winter, on January 18th at 7 - 10pm, we will host a Silent Disco at MNL. Multiple DJs 
play music that can only be heard through headphones (controlled by the listener).  Alcoholic 
beverages will be sold benefiting GR Asian-Pacific Festival; you will also find ice beer pong table 
games, food trucks, and more.  Lunar New Year takes place on January 25th and a celebration will be 
held at MNL with food vendors, performances, and a warming shelter tent.  World Market & Game 
Day will take place the next day from noon to 6 pm with small business goods, ice games, food 
vendors and other partners.  February 1st we will host Movies on the Piazza at Studio C featuring 
summer themed games, movies, and food trucks.  The Human Hungry Hungry Hippo Tournament on 
ice will take place the following weekend at Rosa Parks Circle with prizes for both the Family and Adult 
divisions.  Valent-ICE starts February 14 with ice sculptures, sponsored by businesses, placed 
throughout downtown.  DGRI partners with the Parks Department for Love on Ice to offer two-for-
one ice skating on Valentine’s Day and a giant interactive ice carving wall.  Paint the Park is our 
concluding event on February 15th and will comprise of community ice painting at Rosa Parks Circle 
and a street party on Monroe Center (from Monroe to Ottawa) with face painting, food trucks, 
character appearances, a 5,000-pound live ice sculpture and other vendors. Ms. Catcho stated we also 
partner with various other organizations to activate other areas of downtown including GR Walking & 
Running Tours, Gazelle Girl, Friends of GR Parks, and the Downtown Market. For more information 
you may visit: worldofwintergr.com or follow our events on Facebook.  Mr. Harris suggested we 
provide this information directly to community centers.  Mr. Eddie suggested making this available for 
downtown businesses to share on electronic signs.   

 
10.  2020 Officer Election  

Mr. Harris suggested we hold the Officer Election for the 2020 DDA Board, noting the current chair 
has declined the nomination to continue on the board.  

 
Motion: Mayor Rosalynn Bliss, supported by Ms. Dunn, moved to approve 2020 Officer Elections with 
Rick Winn as Chair, Jana Wallace as Treasurer, and Amanda Sloan as Secretary. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
Mr. Kelly recognized all of the guidance and leadership that Brian Harris has given this DDA Board 
over the years. His ability to artfully navigate meetings, keep the board on task, and see the big picture 
has been a tremendous asset to DGRI and the entire downtown community. He presented Mr. Harris 
with a gift as a thank you for all of his hard work and dedication.  

 
11. President and CEO Report  
 Mr. Kelly stated he was appointed to the International Downtown Association Board of Directors and 

also joined the Downtown Market Board. The Retail Attraction and Retention Initiative position at the 
Chamber has been posted with the hope to have filled early next year.  The Downtown public 
restroom has been ordered.  The Lyon Square Opportunity Site project goes out to bid this week.  
DGRI hosted sessions with the Highline Network and Detroit Riverfront Conservancy to inform the 



Downtown Development Authority  
December 11, 2019 
Meeting Minutes 
 

Page | 6 
 

Grand River Organizational Leadership Committee which also met with HR&A consultants this week 
as they work to develop a river governance structure by the end of the first quarter. The transit bulb 
has been installed on Fulton with amenities being added momentarily.  The City and Mobile GR is 
facilitating community engagement on the possible Ottawa and Ionia conversion this week.  DGRI is 
currently working with Happy PR to highlight downtown businesses and promote the Retail Innovation 
& Retention Grant. The Van Andel Arena Plaza project is out to bid until early January for 
construction to start in the spring.   
 

13. Public Comment  
 Mr. David Davis introduced himself as a downtown resident and voiced his concern for the growing 

population of homeless found on Monroe Center.  He stated as a low-income person, he understands 
homelessness, but is not comfortable interacting with this group of people and desires for someone to 
address this before tourism and businesses are greatly affected.  

 
 Alan Richard, with the City of Grand Rapids Planning Department, introduced himself as the 

administrator of the new CPTED ordinance passed earlier this year.  Mr. Richard stated he is 
promoting CPTED (Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design) principals in general as they 
can be applied to businesses, churches, and homes and will keep the board informed of his progress.  

 
14. Board Member Discussion 
 Mayor Bliss thanked Brian Harris for his tremendous leadership stating she is glad to see his willingness 

to continue to serve in a number of capacities that will continue this body of work.  Mr. Winn agreed.  
Mr. Harris stated this was his highest honor, privilege and joy to be involved in the DDA.  He 
appreciates the support of the previous Chair, Mayor, fellow board members, and staff of DGRI. 

  
15. Adjournment 
 The meeting adjourned at 9:34 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  January 3, 2020 
 
TO:  Rick Winn 
  Chairman 
 
FROM: Jana M. Wallace 
  Downtown Development Authority Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: FY2020 Interim Financial Statements as of November 30, 2019 
 
Attached are the Authority’s interim financial statements for the first six months of the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2020.  The attached statements include: 
 

Statement A:  Balance Sheet 
Statement B:  Comparison of FY2020 Budget vs Actual Results 
Statement C:  Statement of FY2020 Project Expenditures 
Statement D:  Schedule of December, 2019 Expenditures 

 
The Authority expended funds in December for its share of one of two DeVos Place bond 
issues.  Payments were issued towards the new public restroom facility to be installed at 
the corner of Weston and South Division as well as for the Zicla transit stop installation on 
East Fulton.  The Local Tax Increment Fund Administration line item appears to be 
trending higher than expected; however, included in the total is six months of DGRI payroll 
expenditures which will be re-allocated to transfer the expenditures from Administration to 
various Authority, Monroe North TIFA, and Downtown Improvement District projects.   
 
Please contact me at 616-456-4514 or at jwallace@grcity.us if you have any questions. 
 
Attachments 

Agenda Item 3. 
January 8, 2020 
DDA Meeting 



Non-Tax Debt Local Tax
Funds Increment Increment TOTAL

ASSETS
  Pooled Cash and Investments 4,867,722$  10,095,234$  10,109,135$  25,072,091$  
  Petty Cash -              -               500               500               
  Loan Receivable - Project Developer 388,848      -               -                388,848         
  General Fixed Assets -              -               87,946,535    87,946,535    
    Accumulated Depreciation on Fixed Assets -              -               (57,452,061)   (57,452,061)   
  Future Tax Increment Revenues Anticipated -              19,110,000    15,500          19,125,500    
TOTAL ASSETS 5,256,570$  29,205,234$  40,619,609$  75,081,413$  

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities

  Current Liabilities -$            -$              27$               27$               

  Current Year Estimated Excess Capture -              4,236,018     -                4,236,018      
  Deposit - Area 4 Developer Damage 1,000          -               -                1,000            
  Prior Year Property Tax Appeals -              14,347          33,320          47,667          

  Deferred Revenue - 158 Oakes SW LOU 75,000        -               -                75,000          

  Deferred Revenue - Developer Loan 388,848      -               -                388,848         
  Contract Payable -              -               15,500          15,500          
  Bonds Payable -              19,110,000    -                19,110,000    

TOTAL LIABILITIES 464,848      23,360,365    48,847          23,874,060    

Fund Balance / Equity:
  Investments in General Fixed Assets, 
     net of Accumulated Depreciation -              -               30,494,474    30,494,474    
  Non-Tax Increment Reserve 4,254,175    -               -                4,254,175      
  Reserve for Authorized Projects -              -               10,050,173    10,050,173    
  Reserve for Brownfield Series 2012A Bonds 530,998      -               -                530,998         
  Reserve for Compensated Absences -              -               10,000          10,000          
  Reserve for Eligible Obligations -              5,844,869     -                5,844,869      
  Reserve for Encumbrances 6,549          -               16,115          22,664          

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 4,791,722    5,844,869     40,570,762    51,207,353    

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY 5,256,570$  29,205,234$  40,619,609$  75,081,413$  

ddastmts-Dec19.xls jmw 01032020

STATEMENT A

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2019



Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual
REVENUES
Property Tax Increment - General -$            -$              11,778,166$  11,466,518$  5,738,550$    5,785,107$  
Property Tax Increment - Transit Millage -              -                -                -                524,663        583,933      
Property Tax Increment - Prior Year Appeals -              -                (25,000)         -                (75,000)         -              
Property Tax Increment - County/GRCC/City/ITP Rebates -              -                -                -                (618,821)       -              
Special Assessments - Areaway 15,000        -                -                -                -               -              
Earnings from Investments - General 108,466      54,600          60,252          71,549          142,199        104,837      

Earnings from Investments - Prior Year Accrual Reversal -              (43,290)         -                (40,447)         -               (60,438)       
Interest Paid by Developer - The Gallery on Fulton Note 17,498        -                -                -                -               -              
Property Rental - DASH Parking Lots 950,000      207,702         -                -                -               -              
Property Rentals - YMCA Customer Parking 51,207        25,350          -                -                -               -              
Event Sponsorships and Fees 50,000        11,530          -                -                -               -              
Valent-ICE Sculpture Reimbursements 15,000        3,625            -                -                -               -              
Contributions - Lyon Square Reconstruction -              -                -                -                900,000        -              
Contributions - Arena Plaza Reconstruction -              -                -                -                440,000        440,148      
Principal Repayments - The Gallery on Fulton Note 100,000      -                -                -                -               -              
Reimbursements and Miscellaneous Revenues 2,000          -                -                -                5,000            300             
From / (To) Fund Balance 1,810,129    -                (60,252)         -                3,060,084     -              

TOTAL REVENUES 3,119,300$  259,517$       11,753,166$  11,497,620$  10,116,675$  6,853,887$  

EXPENDITURES

GR Forward Projects:
Goal #1:  Restore the River as the Draw and 30,000$      18,209$         -$              -$              1,500,000$    13,325$      
  Create a Connected and Equitable River Corridor

Goal #2:  Create a True Downtown Neighborhood 165,000      11,182          -                -                1,965,000     1,080,509    
  Which is Home to a Diverse Population

Goal #3:  Implement a 21st Century Mobility Strategy 200,000      15,000          -                -                1,715,000     318,787      

Goal #4:  Expand Job Opportunities and Ensure 50,000        11,571          -                -                450,000        120,919      
  Continued Vitality of the Local Economy

Goal #5:  Reinvest in Public Space, Culture, and 2,669,000    406,028         -                -                2,460,000     305,789      
  Inclusive Programming

Total GR Forward Projects 3,114,000$  461,990$       -$              -$              8,090,000$    1,839,329$  

Administration 5,300          662               -                -                1,250,000     746,839      

Debt Service for Bond Issues -              -                7,230,500      477,750         776,675        393,436      

Estimated Capture to be Returned -              -                4,522,666      -                -               -              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,119,300$  462,652$       11,753,166$  477,750$       10,116,675$  2,979,604$  

EXCESS / (DEFICIT) -$            (203,135)$      -$              11,019,870$  -$              3,874,283$  

Non-Tax Funds Debt Tax Increment Local Tax Increment

STATEMENT B

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Comparison of FY2020 Budget vs Actual Results

July 1, 2019 - December 31, 2019

 
 



Remaining
FY2020

Project Name %  Amount Month Fiscal Year Budgets
Arena South Implementation 50,000$        -$              1,020$        48,980$        
Downtown Plan 250,000        -               1,457          248,543        
Grand River Activation -               -               1,512          (1,512)          
Lyon Square Improvements 900,000        1,628            1,936          898,064        
Parks Design 300,000        -               1,484          298,516        
River Trail Improvements -               -               5,916          (5,916)          

GRForward Goal # 1 - Local Tax Increment 13.39% 1,500,000$    1,628$          13,325$      1,486,675$   

Downtown Speakers Series 15,000          -               18,209        (3,209)          
Riverwalk Maintenance 15,000          -               -              15,000          

GRForward Goal # 1 - Non-Tax Increment 0.27% 30,000$        -$              18,209$      11,791$        

Affordable Housing Support 250,000        -               -              250,000        
Development Project Guidance 50,000          -               2,926          47,074          
Development Project Reimbursements 1,400,000     -               1,039,585    360,415        
Downtown Census 15,000          -               -              15,000          
Downtown Enhancement Grants 250,000        -               31,969        218,031        
Weston Street - Sheldon to LaGrave Ave -               -               6,029          (6,029)          

GRForward Goal # 2 - Local Tax Increment 17.54% 1,965,000$    -$              1,080,509$  884,491$      

Heartside Quality of Life Implementation 125,000        120               356             124,644        
Stakeholder Engagement Programs 40,000          2,200            10,826        29,174          

GRForward Goal # 2 - Non-Tax Increment 1.47% 165,000$      2,320$          11,182$      153,818$      

Accessibility and Mobility Repairs 75,000          9,002            46,004        28,996          
Bicycle Friendly Improvements 125,000        -               -              125,000        
CBD/Heartside/Arena S Streetscape Improvs 360,000        13,723          106,690      253,310        
DASH North Shuttle Services 120,000        7,500            120,000      -               
Division Ave - Fulton to Wealthy Streetscape Improvs 310,000        35,182          45,453        264,547        
Michigan / Ottawa Gateway 50,000          -               -              50,000          
New Downtown Circulator Infrastructure 475,000        -               -              475,000        
Wayfinding System Improvements 200,000        -               640             199,360        

GRForward Goal # 3 - Local Tax Increment 15.31% 1,715,000$    65,407$        318,787$     1,396,213$   

Transportation Demand Mnmt Program 200,000        15,000          15,000        185,000        
GRForward Goal # 3 - Non-Tax Increment 1.79% 200,000$      15,000$        15,000$      185,000$      

Economic Development and Innovation 450,000        11,547          120,919      329,081        
GRForward Goal # 4 - Local Tax Increment 4.02% 450,000$      11,547$        120,919$     329,081$      

Downtown Workforce Programs 50,000          800               10,185        39,815          
Letter of Understanding - 158 Oakes SW -               1,386            1,386          (1,386)          

GRForward Goal # 4 - Non-Tax Increment 0.45% 50,000$        2,186$          11,571$      38,429$        

Arena Plaza Improvements:  Local Tax Increment 672,000        175               175             671,825        
Calder Plaza Improvements:  Local Tax Increment 672,000        -               14,000        658,000        
Downtown Marketing and Inclusion Efforts 416,000        23,023          90,247        325,753        
Downtown Tree Plantings 100,000        -               74,954        25,046          
Heartside Public Restroom Facilities Construction 50,000          31,731          31,731        18,269          
Public Realm Improvements:  Local Tax Increment 200,000        -               10,422        189,578        
Sheldon Blvd - Weston to Cherry Street 200,000        31,196          34,065        165,935        
Snowmelt System Repairs / Investigation 25,000          -               -              25,000          
State of Downtown Event & Annual Report 25,000          -               22,851        2,149           
Urban Recreation Improvements 100,000        15,615          27,344        72,656          

GRForward Goal # 5 - Local Tax Increment 21.96% 2,460,000$    101,740$      305,789$     2,154,211$   

Arena Plaza Improvements:  Non-Tax Increment 600,000        -               -              600,000        
Bridge Lighting Operations 10,000          -               -              10,000          
Calder Plaza Improvements:  Non-Tax Increment 600,000        -               -              600,000        
DGRI Event Production 270,000        3,251            122,424      147,576        
Diversity / Inclusion Programming 50,000          14,500          67,975        (17,975)        
Downtown Ambassadors 222,000        5,727            32,651        189,349        
Experience - Miscellaneous 50,000          -               17,964        32,036          
Holiday Décor Program 60,000          6,550            6,550          53,450          
Major Event Sponsorship 70,000          -               -              70,000          
Police Foot Patrols 35,000          -               35,000        -               
Project and Fixed Asset Maintenance 25,000          -               1,203          23,797          
Public Realm Improvements:  Non-Tax Increment 200,000        -               -              200,000        
Public Space Activation 250,000        546               48,229        201,771        
Rosa Parks Circle Skating Operations 40,000          -               -              40,000          
Special Events - Grants 25,000          -               -              25,000          
Special Events - Office of 75,000          -               30,000        45,000          
Special Events - Training Program 5,000            -               1,557          3,443           
Ticketed Events - Police Services 80,000          16,674          42,475        37,525          
Winter Avenue Building Lease 2,000            -               -              2,000           

GRForward Goal # 5 - Non-Tax Increment 23.82% 2,669,000$    47,248$        406,028$     2,262,972$   

TOTAL 100.00% 11,204,000$  247,076$      2,301,319$  8,902,681$   

FY2020 Project Budgets Expenditures

STATEMENT C

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of FY2020 Project Expenditures

As of December 31, 2019



Date
Source Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount
Local 12/10/2019 City / County Joint Building Authority CCJBA Series 2013B - DeVos Place Bonds Annual principal payment 275,000.00$    
Local 12/1/2019 State of Michigan Division - Fulton/Wealthy Streetscape Improvs 17109-Reconst. Division Ave (#11061917109)-DDA 32,200.55       
Local 12/29/2019 Madden Industrial Craftsmen Inc Heartside Public Restroom Construction Portland Loo deposit of 30% 31,731.00       
Local 12/22/2019 Wyoming Excavators Inc Sheldon Blvd - Weston to Cherry Street 15096-Sheldon-Weston/Fulton (#1509614F)-DDA 31,196.39       
Local 12/10/2019 City / County Joint Building Authority CCJBA Series 2013B - DeVos Place Bonds Semi-annual interest payment 27,625.00       
Non-Tax 12/18/2019 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Svcs Transportation Demand Mnmt Program DEC 2019 DDA SHARE OF DASH NORTH SVC 15,000.00       
Local 12/29/2019 Landscape Forms Inc CBD/Heartside/Arena S Streetscape Improvs Zicla platform furniture 12/2019 12,750.00       
Local 12/19/2019 Dwelling Place of Grand Rapids NPHC Economic Development and Innovation Mel Styles Shop - Incubation Grant 2019 10,908.00       
Local 12/2/2019 City Treasurer - Budget Office Administration Support services allocation - December, 2019 10,722.08       
Non-Tax 12/11/2019 City Treasurer - Police Dept Ticketed Events - Police Services Van Andel GRPD overtime costs Nov 2019 9,596.35         
Local 12/4/2019 Source One Imaging Urban Recreation Improvements Downtown Banners 11/2019 7,996.40         
Local 12/18/2019 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Svcs DASH North Shuttle Services DEC 2019 DDA SHARE OF DASH NORTH SVC 7,500.00         
Local 12/30/2019 Disability Advocates of Kent County Accessibility and Mobility Repairs Charrette Expenses - Common Notice 12/2019 7,500.00         
Non-Tax 12/11/2019 City Treasurer - Police Dept Ticketed Events - Police Services DeVos Overtime costs Nov 2019 7,077.66         
Local 12/30/2019 Rick Overway Urban Recreation Improvements Monroe North Banner installation 6,965.00         
Non-Tax 12/29/2019 Haarsma Ventures LLC Holiday Décor Program Services: Holiday Tree Lighting Installation 2019 6,550.00         
Local 12/30/2019 Plante & Moran, PLLC Administration Financial audit for FYE 06/30/2019 6,155.00         

Local 12/10/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street 12/2019 5,957.70         
Non-Tax 12/19/2019 Mydatt Service dba Block by Block Downtown Ambassadors DDA portion of Ambassador team 5,483.34         
Local 12/19/2019 Ingalls Pictures Downtown Marketing & Inclusion Efforts Downpmt for World of Winter video campaign 5,000.00         
Non-Tax 12/29/2019 West Michigan Center for Arts & Tech Diversity / Inclusion Programming Exploring Conflicting Visions sponsorship 12/2019 5,000.00         
Local 12/10/2019 McAlvey Merchant & Associates Administration Governmental consulting October 2019 4,500.00         
Non-Tax 12/19/2019 Disability Advocates of Kent County Diversity / Inclusion Programming 2020 Comprehensive ADA/AKA/DAD sponsor 12/19 4,000.00         
Local 12/19/2019 GRCAC dba Media Center Downtown Marketing & Inclusion Efforts Radio Advertising: GR Live (sponsorship) Dec 19 3,500.00         
Local 12/19/2019 GRCAC dba Media Center Downtown Marketing & Inclusion Efforts Radio Advertising: 1st qtr 09/01/2019-11/30/2019 3,500.00         
Local 12/19/2019 DropDrop.com LLC Downtown Marketing & Inclusion Efforts Post video production State of Downtown 2019 3,495.00         
Local 12/10/2019 Amway Hotel Corporation Downtown Marketing & Inclusion Efforts Advertising - SOLACE Fall 2019 3,210.00         
Local 12/5/2019 Moore & Bruggink Inc Division - Fulton/Wealthy Streetscape Improvs 17109-Reconst Division Ave (#180137.1-12)-DDA 2,981.33         
Non-Tax 12/29/2019 Grand Rapids Children's Museum Diversity / Inclusion Programming New Year's Eve 2019 Event Sponsorship 2,500.00         
Local 12/19/2019 GRCAC dba Media Center Downtown Marketing & Inclusion Efforts LiveStream services for Board mtgs 2019 2,100.00         
Non-Tax 12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card - 11/2019 Stakeholder Engagement Programs DNN Holiday Happy Hour 11/2019 1,700.00         
Local 12/14/2019 City of Grand Rapids Administration Staff services - payroll period ended 12/14/2019 1,690.38         
Local 12/11/2019 Dickinson Wright PLLC Lyon Square Improvements Lyons Square Project 09/2019 1,628.00         
Local 12/19/2019 Disability Advocates of Kent County Accessibility and Mobility Repairs Charrette Expenses 12/2019 1,501.90         
Non-Tax 12/4/2019 City Treasurer - Mayor's Office Diversity / Inclusion Programming Sponsor - Mayor's State of the City address 1,500.00         
Local 12/11/2019 Dickinson Wright PLLC Administration DDA Legal Matters 09/2019 1,452.00         
Non-Tax 12/11/2019 Dickinson Wright PLLC Studio C! Area 4 Sale 101 Ottawa NW Project 09/2019 1,386.00         
Local 12/29/2019 TGG, Inc. Administration Life & S/T & L/T disability ins - 01/01/20-01/31/20 1,128.43         
Non-Tax 12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card - 11/2019 DGRI Event Production Event Supplies 11/2019 1,075.29         
Non-Tax 12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card - 11/2019 DGRI Event Production Forklift rental for North Monroe Lot 11/2019 1,052.22         
Local 12/2/2019 City Treasurer - Risk Management Administration Monthly General Insurance Allocation 1,047.00         
Non-Tax 12/12/2019 West Michigan Env Action Council Diversity / Inclusion Programming Event Sponsorship: Grand River Clean Up 2019 1,000.00         
Local 12/8/2019 Kamminga & Roodvoets Inc CBD/Heartside/Arena S Streetscape Improvs 16065-Newberry-Monroe/Division (#1606519)-DDA 972.86            
Local 12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card - 11/2019 Administration Staff travel, training 11/2019 800.67            
Non-Tax 12/19/2019 Thomas Wall Downtown Workforce Programs Relax at Rosa performer 7/2019 800.00            
Local 12/3/2019 Serendipity Publishing LLC Downtown Marketing & Inclusion Efforts Advertising: DGRI Events 12/2019 772.00            
Local 12/11/2019 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Svcs Administration NOV 2019 CITY PARKING  VALIDATION 771.75            
Local 12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card - 11/2019 Downtown Marketing & Inclusion Efforts Marketing & social media 11/2019 671.07            
Non-Tax 12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card - 11/2019 DGRI Event Production Event Storage Rental fees 11/2019 667.34            
Local 12/19/2019 Creative Studio Promotions Economic Development and Innovation Canvas totes: Small Biz Expo 2nd order 12/2019 638.63            
Local 12/19/2019 GR Area Chamber of Commerce Administration Membership dues 2020 593.92            
Non-Tax 12/29/2019 ArtPeers Diversity / Inclusion Programming DITA Prismatica Project 12/2019 500.00            
Non-Tax 12/3/2019 Erin Abel Stakeholder Engagement Programs Census 2020 Event consult 10/28/19 500.00            
Non-Tax 12/29/2019 Swift Printing & Communications Public Space Activation Handbills posters for CREOS winter art 12/19 492.20            
Local 12/10/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezz Office 12/2019 475.14            
Local 12/5/2019 Professional Maint of Michigan Inc. Administration Janitorial services November 2019 451.38            
Local 12/10/2019 HR Collaborative LLC Administration HR Consultant services 11/2019 427.63            
Local 12/11/2019 Dickinson Wright PLLC Administration Service Agreement with Block by Block 09/2019 400.70            
Local 12/3/2019 GreatAmerica Financial Svcs Corp Administration Copier Lease 11/2019 360.95            
Local 12/10/2019 Z2 Systems Inc Downtown Marketing & Inclusion Efforts NeonCRM cloud-based software 10/2019 350.00            
Local 12/29/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Administration Server migration implementation svcs 11/2019 321.71            
Non-Tax 12/3/2019 Swift Printing & Communications DGRI Event Production World of Winter flyers 11/2019 276.43            
Local 12/10/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Administration IT Office 365 Software Agreement 11/2019 259.74            
Local 12/19/2019 TDS Metrocom, LLC Administration Phone Service 12/2019 249.52            
Local 12/29/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Administration Utility Service: Electric Nov 2019 229.29            
Local 12/29/2019 David Specht Downtown Marketing & Inclusion Efforts Penalosa video12/19 225.00            
Local 12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card - 11/2019 Urban Recreation Improvements Dog Park supplies 11/2019 203.61            
Non-Tax 12/29/2019 Swift Printing & Communications DGRI Event Production World of Winter flyers 12/2019 179.50            
Local 12/3/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Administration IT Services 11/2019 177.88            

Local 12/19/2019 Perrigo Printing Inc Arena Plaza Improvements:  Local Tax Van Andel Plaza blue prints 12/2019 175.00            
Local 12/25/2019 PCS Gophers Ltd Administration November, 2019 courier services 169.29            

continued on the next page

STATEMENT D

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Schedule of FY2020 Expenditures

December, 2019

 



STATEMENT D - continued
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Schedule of Expenditures - FY2020 Page 2
December, 2019

Date Activity #
Source Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount
Continued from previous page
Local 12/29/2019 Cellco Partnership dba Verizon Administration Cell Phone Service 11/2019 164.07$          
Local 12/3/2019 City Treasurer - Traffic Safety Urban Recreation Improvements Banner Permit - Monroe Ave, from Fulton to I-196 150.00            
Local 12/3/2019 City Treasurer - Traffic Safety Urban Recreation Improvements Banner Permit - Monroe Ave, from Fulton to I-196 150.00            
Local 12/19/2019 Landscape Forms Inc Urban Recreation Improvements Receptacle replacement parts 12/2019 150.00            
Local 12/10/2019 Comcast Cable Communications, Inc. Administration Internet at 29 Pearl St NW 11/07/2019-01/05/2020 145.55            
Local 12/19/2019 Selective Ins Company of America Administration Liability Insurance Endorsement for DDA 2019 133.83            
Non-Tax 12/11/2019 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Svcs Heartside Quality of Life Implementation Veggie Van meter hooding 11/2019 120.00            
Non-Tax 12/15/2019 Rock Dandeneau Stakeholder Engagement Programs DNN Stakeholder luncheon Nov 2019 112.50            
Local 12/3/2019 David Specht Downtown Marketing & Inclusion Efforts Civicize.Me Video 11/19 100.00            
Local 12/10/2019 David Specht Downtown Marketing & Inclusion Efforts Mosby's ribbon cutting video record/edit 9/19 100.00            
Local 12/19/2019 Littlefoot Coffee Roasters Administration Meeting supplies 12/2019 90.28              
Non-Tax 12/19/2019 DTE Energy Downtown Ambassadors 351 Winter Ave NW - 12/2019  DDA's share 79.24              
Local 12/3/2019 Metro FiberNet, LLC Administration Internet at 29 Pearl St NW 11/2019 79.15              
Non-Tax 12/11/2019 Dickinson Wright PLLC Downtown Ambassadors Safety Ambassador Agreement 09/2019 66.00              
Local 12/10/2019 Staples Contract and Commercial Inc. Administration Office supplies 11/27/2019 64.83              
Non-Tax 12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card - 11/2019 Administration Annual review lunch meetings 60.29              
Non-Tax 12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card - 11/2019 Public Space Activation Supplies expense for space activation 11/2019 54.17              
Non-Tax 12/2/2019 Consumers Energy Downtown Ambassadors 351 Winter Ave NW - 11/2019  DDA's share 50.80              
Non-Tax 12/3/2019 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Svcs Downtown Ambassadors NOVEMBER 2019 MONTHLY PARKING 48.00              
Local 12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card - 11/2019 Administration Admin Postage 11/2019 40.66              
Local 12/15/2019 County of Kent KCDC Series 2008 Floodwalls Share of annual paying agent fee 37.50              
Local 12/3/2019 Curtis Laundry & Dry Cleaners, Inc. Administration DGRI Table Cloth Cleaning services 11/18/2019 33.26              
Local 12/10/2019 Fusion IT LLC Administration System & Network IT engineering 11/2019 24.17              
Local 12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card - 11/2019 Administration CEO prof'l devel - Travel GoGo flight WIFI 12.99              
Local 12/29/2019 Fusion IT LLC Administration Network Management 1/2020 9.50                
Local 12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card - 11/2019 Administration Office Supplies 2.73                
Non-Tax 12/13/2019 Rock Dandeneau Stakeholder Engagement Programs DNN Stakeholder luncheon Nov 2019 (112.50)           

TOTAL DECEMBER, 2019 EXPENDITURES 588,942.25$     
































































